ANNE MILGRAM

ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY
Division of Law

124 Halsey Street, 5" Floor

P.O. Box 45029

Newark, New Jersey 07101

Attomey for Plaintiffs

By:  James R. Michael
Gregory McHugh
Deputy Attorneys General
(973) 693-5055

SUPERIOR COURT OF NEW JERSEY
CHANCERY DIVISION -ESSEX COUNTY
DOCKET NO. ESX-C-__{4 -0 ]

ANNE MILGRAM, Attorney General of the
State of New Jersey, DAVID M. SZUCHMAN,
Director of the New Jersey Division of
Consumer  Affairs, and STEVEN M.
GOLDMAN, Commissioner of the New Jersey
Department of Banking and Insurance,

Plainfiffs,

Civil Action

V.

NEW DAY FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, SA,
NDROA, INC., AMERICAN CREDIT REPAIR
AND DEBT  SETTLEMENT, LLC.,
PARAMOUNT DEBT SETTLEMENT USA,
L.L.C., UZOR FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS,
L.LC., UZOR AND ASSOCIATES, P.C.,
AMERICAN FINANCIAL ADVOCACY
COUNCIL, STEPHEN PASCH, EJIKE N.
UZOR, JANE and JOHN DOES 1-10,
individually and as owners, officers, directors,
shareholders, founders, managers, agents, .
servants, employees, representatives and/ori
independent  contractors  of NEW DAY |
FINANCIAL SOLUTIONS, SA, AMERICAN !
CREDIT REPAIR AND DEBT SETTLEMENT, !
L..L.C., PARAMOUNT DEBT SETTLEMENT
USA, L.L.C., UZOR AND ASSQCIATES, P.C,,
and XYZ CORPORATIONS 1-10,

VERIFIED COMPLAINT
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100.  Upon information and belief, scores more New Jersey debtors have been solicited
by and/or entered into agreements with Defendants, all in violation of the DACCA.

101. Defendantrs’ conduct constitutes multiple violations of N.I.S.A. 17:16G-2(a) and
N.J.S. A, 17:16G-2(b), which also constitute violations of the CFA, N.JL.S.A. 56:8-2,

COUNT YV
VIOLATION OF CREDIT REPAIR ORGANIZATIONS ACT (15 U.S.C. §1679)

102.  Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
101 above as if more fully set forth at length herein.

103.  The Federal Credit Repair Organizations Act (“CROA™), 15 U.S.C. §1679 et seq.,
prohibits individuals or entities from accepting fees for credit repair services prior to performing
such credit repair services.

104, 15 U.S.C. §1679h(c) authorizes the chief law enforcement officer or other
designated State official to bring an action under the CROA to enjoin violations of the CROA
and to recover damages for residents of the State.

105. Defendants American Credit Repair and Debt Settlement, L.L.C. and Paramount
Debt Settlement USA, L.L.C,, offer credit repair services to consumers, and charge consumers an
up-front “application/enroliment” fee, as well as a monthly service charge for the services, prior
to performing any such credit repair services.

106. By accepting fees for credit repair services prior to providing any such services,
Defendants American Credit Repair and Debt Settlement, L.L.C. and Paramount Debt Settlement
USA, 1.L.C. have violated 15 U.S.C. §1679.

COUNT VI1
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DISSOLUTION OF UNDER N.J.S.A, 15A:12-11 OF NEW JERSEY NONPROFIT
CORPORATION ACT

167, Plamntiffs repeat and reailege the allegations contained in paragraph's 1 through
106 above as if more fully set forth at length herein.

108. Defendant American Financial Advocacy Council was formed as a non-profit
corporation pursuant to the New Jersey Nonprofit Corporations Act, N.J.S.A. 15A:1-1 et seq.
The certification of incorporation provides that its purpose is to advocate for the financial
interests of American consumers.

109.  New Jersey Nonprofit Corporations Act prohibits the organization of a non-profit
corporation for pecuniary profit. N.J.S.A, 15A:2-1.

110. Defendants operate American Financial Advocacy Council for pecuniary profit,
specifically as a marketing ool to refer customers to Defendants’ for-profit businesses.

111.  The website that purports to be for the American Financial Advocacy Council
refers consumers to the for-profit businesses operated by the Defendants. The website has not
referred consumers to any other business or entity other than those operated by Defendants.

112, Upon information and belicf, the telephone number listed for the American
Financial Advocacy Council connects directly to the call center operated by Defendants’ for-
profit businesses.

113, N.JS.A. 15A:12-11 authorizes the Attorney General to bring an action for the
dissolution of a nonprofit corporation upon the grounds that the nonprofit corporation:

(1) Has procured its organization through fraudulent
misrepresentation or concealment of a material fact;
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(4) Has repeatedly exceeded the authority conferred upon it by
law;

(5) Has repeatedly conducted its business i an unla’. ful manner;
(6) Has misused or improperly failed to use it powers, privileges or

franchises;

(9) Is conducting its activities in violation of its certificate of
incorporation or, with respect to specific assets, in violation of any
termis, conditions or restrictions applicable to those assets imposed
upon it; [or]

(11) Is conducting activities in a manner which is prejudicial to the
public.

114. Because the American Financial Advocacy Council is being used in a deceptive
and fraudulent manner to promote the pecuniary interests of Defendants, it has violated each of
the subsections of N.J.S.A. 15A:12-11 cited in the immediately-preceding paragraph, and should
be dissolved.

COUNT VII

ENJOINMENT OF ULTRA VIRES ACTIVITIES BY NONPROFIT CORPORATION

115. Plaintiffs repeat and reallege the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 through
114 above as if more fully set forth at length herein.

116. The Attorney General’s common law powers include protecting the public interest
in nonprofit corporations by filing actions to enjoin ultra vires activities.

117.  Under N.IS.A. 15A:3-2, the Attomey General is statutorily empowered to file

actions to enjoin ulfra vires activities of nonprofit corporations.
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118. Defendant American Financial Advocacy Council’s stated charitable purpose is to
adyocate for the financial interests of American consumers.
| 119. By operating as a marketing tool to refer customers to Defendants’ for-profit
businesses and for the other pecuniary purposes alleged herein, American Financial Advocacy
Council engages in ultra vires transactions in violation of N.J.S.A. 15A:3-2 and the common

law.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, based upon the foregoing allegations, Plaintiffs respectfully request that
the Court enter judgment against Defendants:

(a) Finding that Defendants’ acts and omissions constitute multiple instances
of unlawful practices in violation of the CFA, N.J.S.A. 56:8-1 et seq., and
the regulations promulgated thereunder, specifically the Advertising
Regulations, N.J.LA.C. 13:45A-9.1 et seq.; '

(b) Temporarily, preliminarily, and permanently enjoining Defendants and their
owners, officers, directors, sharcholders, founders, managers, agents,
servants, employees, representatives, independent contractors and all other
persons or entities directly under their control, from engaging in, continuing
to engage in, or doing any acts or practices in violation of the CFA,
N.JS.A. 56:8-1 et seg.,, and the regulations promulgated thereunder,
specifically the Advertising Regulations, NJ.A.C. 13:45A-9.1 et seq., the
DACCA, 17:16G-1 et seq., and the CROA, 15 U.S.C. 1679 et seq.,
including, but not limited to, the acts and practices alleged in this Verified
Complaint and the activity that is the subject of Plaintiffs’ request for
temporary and preliminary injunctive relief, as set forth in the
accompanying Order to Show Cause with Temporary Restraints Pursuant to
Rule 4:52;

(c) Finding that the acts and practices engaged in by Defendants constitute
multiple violations of the DACCA, N.I.S.A. 17:16G-1 et seq.;

(d) Permanently enjoining Defendants and their owners, officers, directors,
shareholders, managers, agents, servants, employees, representatives,
independent contractors and all other persons or entities directly under
their control, from engaging in, continuing to engage in, or doing any acts
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(e

M

(8)

(h)

)

()

(k)

or practices in violation of the DACCA, N.JS.A. 17:16G-1 et seq.,
including but not limited to, the acts and practices alleged in this Verified
Complaint;

Assessing a penalty of $1,000 for the first violation of the DACCA and
$5,000 for the second and each subsequent violation pursuant to N.I.S.A.
17:16G-8;

Providing restitution to any New Jersey homeowner that paid Defendants a
fee, in violation of the DACCA;

Directing the assessment of restitution and damages amounts against
Defendants, jointly and severally, to restore to any affected person,
whether or not named in this Verified Complaint, any money or real or
personal property acquired by means of any practice alleged herein to be
unlawful and found to be unlawful, as authorized by the CFA, N.I.S.A.
56:8-8 and the DACCA, N.J.S.A. 17:16G-8.

Assessing the maximum statutory civil penalties against Defendants,
jointly and severally, for each and every violation of the CFA, in
accordance with N.J.S.A. 56:8-13;

Directing the assessment of costs and fees, including attorneys’ fees,
against Defendants, jointly and severally, for the use of the State of New
Jersey, as authorized by the CFA, N.J.S.A. 56: 8-11 and N.J.S.A. 56:8-19;

Assessing the maximum statutory civil penalties against Defendants, jointly
and severally, for each and every violation of the Debt Adjustment and
Credit Counseling Act, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 17:16G-8;

Directing the dissolution of Defendant American Financial Advocacy
Council pursuant to N.J.S.A. 15A:12-11, and the winding up of its affairs,
including the transfer of charitable assets or trusts {o an entity operating
for appropriate charitable purposes;

(1) Temporarily, preliminarily, and permanently enjoining Defendant American

Financial Advocacy Council from engaging in the ultra vires activities alleged
herein; and
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(m)  Granting such other relief as the interests of justice may require.

Dated: July /D 2009
Newark, New Jersey

ANNE MILGRAM
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY
Attomney for Plaintiffs

AP ALY

J anys R. Michael
eputy Attorney General
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RULE 4:5-1 CERTIFICATION

I certify, to the best of my information and belief, that the matter in controversy in this
action involving the aforementioned violations of the New Jersey Debt Adjustment and Credit
Counseling Act, N.J.S.A. 17:16G-1 et seq., the Consumer Fraud Act, N.J.S.A. 56:8-1 et seq., the
Credit Repair Organizations Act, 15 US.C. 1679 et seq., and the New Jersey Nonprofit
Corporations Act, N.J.S.A. 15A;1-1 gt seq., is not the subject of any other action pending in any
other court of this State. I further certffy that the matter in controversy in this action is not the
subject of a pending arbitration proceeding in this State, nor 1s any other action or arbitration
proceeding contemplated. I certify that there is no other party who should be joined in this action

at this time.

ANNE MILGRAM
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY
Attorney for Plaintiffs

W)/

il'?/es R. Michael
(___Deputy Attomey General

Dated: July (@ 2009
Newark, New Jersey
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DESIGNATION OF TRIAL COUNSEL,

Pursuant to R. 4:25-4, Deputy Attorney General James R. Michael is hereby designated as

trial counsel on behalf of Plaintiffs in this matter.

ANNE MILGRAM
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF NEW JERSEY
Attomey for Plaintiffs

DD LY

s R. Michael
eputy Attorney General

Dated: July /€, 2009
Newark, New Jersey

JuL 10 2009
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VERIFICATION

1, Jared O’Cone, of full age, hereby certify as follows:

1. I am an Investigator with the New Jersey Division of Consumer Affairs
(“Division™), Office of Consumer Protection.

2. I have read the foregoing Verified Complaint and on my own personal knowledge
and review of documents in possession of the Division, including the Certifications of Andrea
McKie, Marie J aworski-Miller, David Zuba, and Leo Raspberry, which are attached as Exhibits.
I know that the facts set forth herein are true and they are incorporated in this certification by
reference, except for those alleged upon information and belief.

3. I certify that the above statements made By me are frue. | am aware that if any of

the foregoing statements made by me are willfully false, | am subject to punishment.

(o O

JARED O’CONE

Dated: July /_0, 2009
Newark, New Jersey
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